



BOOK I

PROPHESIED EVENTS

Luz de Maria

Revelaciones Marianas

Copyright:

Luz de María de Bonilla, reserves all copyrights on this book. Any person is authorized to download this work for personal and non-profit use only from our official website Revelaciones Marianas, e-mail address: www.revelacionesmarianas.com.

The reproduction, distribution, edition, alteration, modification, transmission or any other form of communication of this book, either partially or totally, in any format (printed, digital, verbal, visual or electronic) and through any platform, with or without animation, when the purpose is to commercialize or distribute it for profit, is strictly prohibited.

Any use other than the authorized herein shall require formal authorization, which may be requested through the following e-mail address: info@revelacionesmarianas.com.

Violation of these provisions shall be subject to the penalties provided by in state, national, international laws and/or treaties between countries on copyright. "Indeed, the Lord God does nothing without revealing his plan to his servants the prophets"

(Amos 3:7).

"You who dwell in the shelter of the Most High, who abide in the shade of the Almighty, say to the Lord, 'My refuge and fortress, my God in whom I trust.' He will rescue you from the fowler's snare, from the destroying plague, He will shelter you with his pinions, and under his wings you may take refuge; his faithfulness is a protecting shield. You shall not fear the terror of the night nor the arrow that flies by day, nor the pestilence that roams in darkness, nor the plague that ravages at noon.

Though a thousand fall at your side, ten thousand at your right hand, near you it shall not come"

(Psalm 91: 1-7).

PROLOGUE

Dear reader, we present this work called "EVERYTHING HAS ALREADY BEEN SAID BY MY HOUSE". It is made up of four books in which we have condensed a series of Messages, Revelations, and Prophecies given to Luz de Maria that detail the serious events and happenings that are beginning to occur with increasing intensity and danger, which will lead humanity and the planet to a radical change, not only in the physical-material order, but mainly spiritual.

The content of this work does not include explanations of the Instrument on the Prophecies, nor does it include informative additions of a scientific, philosophical or theological nature, but rather the information revealed by Heaven has been arranged according to the most important events that have been given to humanity through Luz de Maria.

It is therefore a Divine invitation and that of Our Blessed Mother to meditation, to a conscious observation and to a deep reflection on the reality of the world and ourselves in order to be properly prepared physically, mentally and spiritually.

In other words, we can define this work as a roadmap, which we must all unfailingly follow and understand in depth, not only with the eyes of faith, but also with reason, for the complexity of the events will be extremely difficult. Events of geological, social, economic, political, environmental, health, warlike, cosmic and religious order will give humanity unprecedented blows, putting every human creature to the test.

Finally, having assimilated the information and understanding the urgency of the moment, we will be able to assume with responsibility a new and profound vision of reality and thus strengthen the faith and hope that Heaven has promised us: a purified and renewed humanity, living in the Divine Will.

EVERYTHING HAS ALREADY BEEN SAID BY MY HOUSE!

PROPHESIED EVENTS

Private Revelations given by God The Father, Our Lord Jesus Christ, the Most Holy Virgin Mary, St. Michael the Archangel, and St. Raphael the Archangel to Luz de María from the year 2009 to February 2025.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 05.01.2022

FOOLISH CHILDREN! YOU DO NOT KNOW THE PROPHECIES CONTAINED IN SACRED SCRIPTURE.

If you knew them, you would understand the times in which you find yourselves and the signs and signals of this moment. Everything is found in Sacred Scripture, yet humanity no longer believes in the Most Holy Trinity, scorns Me and denies being God's workmanship.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 06.20.2024

I love you, do not ignore My Calls, remain united and attentive to these loving calls permitted by the Most Holy Trinity before, due to nature or man, you can no longer hear My Calls or those of My Divine Son.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.05.2024

Beloved children, keep everything that I mention to you on paper. The mind cannot retain so many years of My Love towards you - it is necessary for you to have everything on paper that I have mentioned to you.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- I. The time in which we live, the Great Purification
- II. God has decreed His limits
- III. The Most Holy Trinity sends St. Michael the Archangel with the Divine Word to guide and protect the children of God
- IV. The current state of humanity
- V. Private Revelations given to Luz de María
 - i. Related to nature
 - ii. Related to solar and spatial activity
 - iii. Related to the coastal zones
 - iv. Related to political and social issues
 - **v.** Related to the fall of the economy
 - vi. Related to food shortage
 - vii. Related to the family
 - viii. Related to the microchip
 - ix. Related to war

VI. Private Revelations about the Church

- a. Denial of Sacred Scripture
- **b.** Suppression of the Eucharist
- c. Displacing the Blessed Mother and removing Her from everything
- d. The false Church
- e. The Single religion
- **f.** The Schism of the Church
- **g.** The desolation, abomination and profanation in the Temples
- **h.** The persecution of Christians

VII. Upcoming Events

- i. There will be many signs
 i.Universal apparition of the Most Holy Virgen Mary
 ii.Sign in the Advocation of Our Lady of Guadalupe
 iii.Sign in the sky prior to a severe event on Earth
 iv.Sign in the sky before the Warning
- **b.** The Sacred Hearts will be seen
- **c.** Great migrations
- **d.** Darkness comes
- e. Living without electricity or technology
- **f.** Events in the heavens
- g. The Great Warning
- **h.** Presentation of the Antichrist to humanity
- i. Arrival of the Angel of Peace
- j. The Three Days of Darkness
- k. The Great Chastisement

VIII. Triumph of the Immaculate Heart of Mary

IX. The Return of Christ, His Second Coming

I. THE TIME IN WHICH WE LIVE, THE GREAT PURIFICATION

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.16.2025

THE HAND OF MY FATHER HAS DESCENDED...
THIS GENERATION WILL NOT PASS WITHOUT EXPERIENCING
PURIFICATION. YOU WILL COME TO ME IN SEARCH OF MY MERCY.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.16.2024

EVERYTHING HAS ALREADY BEEN SAID BY MY HOUSE!

IT IS HUMAN RESPONSIBILITY THAT MUST ACT, THE FUTURE THAT WE HAVE WARNED YOU SO MUCH ABOUT DEPENDS ON IT...

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 07.15.2024

My children, the shadow of evil is moving throughout the Earth at every opportunity and you must remain on spiritual alert so that it would not make you fall or make you indifferent to daily events.

YOU MUST KNOW WHAT IS HAPPENING IN HUMANITY: YOU CANNOT LIVE AS PART OF HUMANITY AND BE INDIFFERENT TO DAILY EVENTS.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.09.2024

Faith is essential (cf. Jn. 14:1; cf. Mt. 17:20) on the part of humanity in order to be strengthened during these end times in which, as part of the human race, YOU WILL LIVE THROUGH THE PERIOD OF THE APOCALYPSE AT THE HANDS OF THOSE WHO WANT TO REPLACE OUR KING AND LORD JESUS CHRIST.

The time has come when, as the Mystical Body of Christ (Cf. I Cor. 12:27) (1), you will suffer and be purified so that afterwards, like the most precious stones, you might shine in the name of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ and in the name of Our Queen and Mother of the End Times.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.29.2024

Now that you have entered into the purification and the succession of natural, social, religious and moral events, it is good for each of you to remain attentive to what is happening so that you would not be caught unawares.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.02.2024

Little children, you need the information necessary in order to take prompt measures; this is not a game that you will be facing gradually - it is a reality that you do not want to see, and if you doubt the Devil will take you as his prize.

ENOUGH IS ENOUGH, LITTLE CHILDREN, ENOUGH IS ENOUGH!
THIS IS THE TIME TO STOP, TO LEAVE EVERYTHING AND STOP IN
ORDER TO LOOK WITHIN YOURSELVES.

II. GOD HAS DECREED HIS LIMITS

GOD THE FATHER

08.07.2023

Humanity is suffering and will suffer, this being the choice of what you have allowed and what you desire: to live on your own. I have allowed you to live in your own way, but I must stop this human madness...

I WILL NOT ALLOW MAN TO DESTROY WHAT I HAVE CREATED!

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST

01.20.2024

Technological advances are of great importance for all humanity, but there is a part of science that has taken hold of knowledge precisely in order to cause the annihilation of the human race...

AND I WILL NOT ALLOW IT. BUT I WILL ALLOW THE PURIFICATION OF THE FREE WILL THAT REIGNS IN THIS GENERATION - DEPRAVED, LICENTIOUS, DEHUMANIZED, ARROGANT, WHICH SCORNS ME AND SCORNS MY BELOVED MOTHER. I AM BOTH MERCY AND JUSTICE!

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.17.2024

The wonders of the powerful Hand of God the Father will be present in the moments of greatest difficulty for the human race. God will not allow the human race to destroy His Creation!

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 04.23.2024

ALWAYS MAINTAIN YOUR FAITH! MY DIVINE SON WILL NOT ALLOW THE EARTH TO BE DESTROYED: HE WILL COME BEFOREHAND WITH HIS POWER AND WILL STOP HUMANITY'S MADNESS.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 05,24,2024

There will be great suffering on the face of the Earth, rivers of blood on the face of the Earth, and yet the desire for power will not be satisfied until I am forced to intervene and stop the slaughter. I will do so out of love, love for each one of you whom I bless and love, love and bless.

III. THE MOST HOLY TRINITY SENDS ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL WITH THE DIVINE WORD TO GUIDE AND PROTECT THE CHILDREN OF GOD

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.19.2024

You are not aware of what is about to happen... In the blink of an eye, chaos will come to humanity.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.09.2024

I am sent to bless you and to bring peace to those who lack peace, to bring love to those who want to have love, and this I will do!

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.15.2024

I am sent to enlighten the work and actions of humanity. Continue to act in accordance with the teachings of our King and Lord Jesus Christ and of Our Queen and Mother.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 07.23.2024

I COME TO YOU BY DIVINE WILL...

I come in order to invite you to be creatures of faith and perpetual adorers of Jesus in the Sacrament; in this way, hearts of stone will succeed in allowing the Great Maker of life to shape them with a chisel, according to His Will.

Children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, I bring you great joy:
AT THE TIME OF HUMANITY'S GREATEST TRIAL, DIVINE AND
INFINITE MERCY WILL SHOW THE HUMAN RACE THAT IT IS NOT
ALONE, BUT ON THE CONTRARY, THAT WILL BE WHEN IT WILL BE
MOST FULLY ACCOMPANIED BY THE FATHER'S HOUSE AND OUR
OUEEN AND MOTHER.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.29.2023

Beloved ones of the Most Holy Trinity, I come to you by Divine Will.

Given the urgency of the events and signs that are constantly occurring, I am sent to awaken you, so that you would be ready to change your lives - now!

IV. THE CURRENT STATE OF HUMANITY

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.12.2024

At this time, human creatures do not aspire towards My House, instead they satisfy themselves in what is worldly, in base instincts, in the whims of the flesh, in the search for the unknown and in what can give them power over their brothers and sisters; for this, you enter into all that is contaminated by the Devil.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 08.23.2024

Beloved children, you are in the time of plagues and great diseases that will scourge all mankind, but the worst disease, and which has no cure, is the disease of the rejection of God in the life of every human creature. The disease that has no cure is the one that the human creature with his senses and with his word pronounces: "I do not believe in God, I do not love Him, and I do not need Him." That is the worst disease that has no cure (cf. 1 Jn. 1,9). That is why I call you to cleanse yourselves spiritually, to go with quickened steps to the reunion with My Divine Son so that you may ask for forgiveness (cf. 1 Jn. 1,9).

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.12.2024

Everything is prepared as the New Order wants it. No human being is a slave of sin (cf. Rom. 6:16), if the human being itself does not want and does not allow it. No one can take away your mind and heart, which is why an adult faith is essential within each one of you.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 07.25.2024

You will live through what no generation before you has experienced, coming from great advances that have served man, as well as the serious and terrifying progress of misused science, and you will experience what misused science has achieved, which is unknown to you.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 07.15.2024

THE DEVIL DOES NOT POSSESS MORE POWER THAN I DO: YOU MUST UNDERSTAND THIS SO THAT YOU MAY STAND FIRM. The Devil tempts my children with his destructive cunning and has managed to penetrate the minds of great scientists who have created what science today will use to cause evil, killing man himself.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 06.13.2024

My little children, humanity will reach the point of despair; people will lose control of themselves and will give themselves over to the debauchery caused by despair, taking what does not belong to them for fear of having nothing to eat, nothing with which to sustain themselves. Yet do not forget, little children, that if necessary, My Divine Son will send Manna from Heaven (cf. Jn.6:32-35) so that His People would find consolation, as for God nothing is impossible. (cf. Lk. 1:37). YOU SHOULD THEREFORE NOT FALL INTO DESPAIR; EVEN IF THE EARTH COLLAPSES IN FRONT OF YOUR FEET, YOU WILL NOT FALL, BECAUSE MY DIVINE SON IS PROTECTING YOU

AND HAS SENT HIS ANGELIC LEGIONS COMMANDED BY SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL TO PROTECT YOU.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 03.15.2024

RESIST SO MUCH TEMPTATION; BE STRONG, REMAIN IMMOVABLE - THERE ARE TOO MANY SNARES OF EVIL: women dress with great obscenity, men wear tight clothes and with fabrics similar to those of women. How much sin and disturbance there is in the life of this generation!

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.20.2024

YOU ARE LIVING AT A TIME OF DEEPEST CHAOS, when the human race has lost its sense of reality and has fallen into the deceptions of innovations that crush the Truth; you enter into lies, confusion, deception...

Children, knowledge is necessary, otherwise you very easily fall into thinking that sin does not exist, and where will you go without Me?

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 10.03.2022

My children, you are being unified in your thinking by means of the different electronic media used by the great powers and which you use in order to communicate.

Pay attention, My children:

WORLD DOMINATION IS UPON HUMANITY, EXERTING SUCH A NEGATIVE INFLUENCE UPON THE MINDS OF ALL, THAT YOU WILL COME TO WORK AND BEHAVE VERY BASELY AS HUMAN BEINGS.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 08.07.2022

This generation mocks Me, My Mother, My Cross and My consecrated ones who work and act in My Will.

This generation does not understand the moment in which it is living because it does not love Me and does not believe.

This generation rejects My Peace, content to immerse itself in that which causes confrontations, rebellions, conflicts and strife, because this is the environment in which Satan is to be found, and he envelops them in all that noise which does not allow peace, love, tranquility, discernment, self-giving and My Love to reign within My children. Therefore, exposed to the storms of evil, they go down wrong paths that lead them to be unbelievers, to not love their neighbor, to taste pride and vanity, regarding their brothers and sisters as so small that they do not take them into account.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.23.2022

HUMANITY'S DISOBEDIENCE IS THE WEAPON OF THE DEVIL WITH WHICH HE SUCCEEDS IN MAKING MAN RISE UP AGAINST THE MOST HOLY TRINITY.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 02.09.2022

THIS GENERATION HAS GONE BACKWARDS SPIRITUALLY... They continually offer vinegar to My Divine Son (Ps 69:21). I often find that My own are envious of their brothers and sisters, carrying heavy grudges that bend them almost to the ground.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.06.2022

You are living at a time when unfaithfulness has invaded the environment in which humanity lives, and the latter has welcomed it with pleasure, which leads to grave baseness. Knowing human beings and their weakness for the sins of the flesh, the infernal spirits have drawn up strategies unleashing

immorality, so much so that you have surpassed the sins of Sodom and Gomorrah.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.04.2023

You are faced with evil, which through misused technological means, will amaze humanity by creating images in the sky in order to confuse you and thereby lead you down the path contrary to that of the Divine Will.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 07.13.2021

YOUNG PEOPLE, IN ABSOLUTE DISOBEDIENCE, HAVE FALLEN INTO TOTAL BASENESS WHERE VALUES HAVE BEEN BURIED IN ORDER NOT TO BE KNOWN. Seeing belief in God as something ancient, false and loathsome will draw sickness to young people, touching them in a particular way so that they would make amends. Even so, some will prefer being lost to acknowledging that they are living in evil. The music of young people is aberrant; their words are offensive to Our King and Lord Jesus Christ and to Our Queen and Mother.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 05.23.2020

THE CHAOS THAT HUMANITY IS FACING IS NOT ON THE MATERIAL LEVEL, AS MANY OF MY CHILDREN FEAR; THE GREATEST CHAOS ARRIVES WHEN GOD IS PUT ASIDE AND THOSE WHO ARE NOT PART OF THE TRUE MAGISTERIUM OF MY SON'S CHURCH ARE GIVEN PREFERENCE.

The worst pandemic that exists in this generation is the loss of faith, generating divisions and persecutions within My Son's People in relation to My favored sons and those of My Son's People who are involved in the evangelization of the people of God.

V. PRIVATE REVELATIONS GIVEN TO LUZ DE MARÍA

i. RELATED TO NATURE

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.16.2025

MY TRUTH IS ABSOLUTE, BUT YOU CONTINUE YOUR LIVES WITHOUT MAKING AMENDS.

That is why the winds will bring down the pride of some of My children and at the same time fire will appear in one place and another on Earth, leaving desolation and foreshadowing the fire that will fall from Heaven. Wind, fire and water will predominate in the development of events. Great cities will be reduced by the elements and by the strong earthquakes that will cause them to disappear in their wake.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.06.2024

Beloved of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, nature is destroyed by man and man receives the reaction of his action. The water of the seas is entering onto the earth; places where it did not tremble before will know the shaking of the earth.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 08.22.2024

You need to be attentive to the reactions of nature because earthquakes are becoming more frequent and their intensity is increasing, as well as affecting the core of the Earth to shake strongly. Little children, the Earth has weakened, water is advancing over it becoming more sea and less land.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.19.2024

The sky will appear to burn, progressing from country to country and then growing dark; do not move at that point - stay where you are and offer yourselves to Me, acknowledge your faults and pray, pray.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.28.2022

ANIMALS WILL SURPRISE HUMANITY BY THEIR BEHAVIOR...

Birds will die in the air, contaminated by toxic substances placed by man himself in order to be transported by air, causing the birds to fall lifeless in the cities. Be careful and do not touch them.

Marine animals will come out of the sea or rivers in surprising numbers because the deep layers of the earth are moving, causing marine animals to want instinctively to come out to save themselves.

On the prairies, animals will die in large numbers.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 11.17.2023

Beaches will be a constant danger: so much sin will be punished! With its unusual behavior, there will be no trusting the sea.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 10.22.2023

The bad behavior of the children of My Divine Son is bringing pain. Water will appear suddenly with greater force, causing serious devastation, leading you to horror from one moment to the next.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 12.16.2022

Water will appear where there is sand and where there is water, sand will appear. Volcanoes will roar in various countries all over the Earth. The desert will be invaded by water and where there is water, there will be desert.

ii. RELATED TO SOLAR AND SPATIAL ACTIVITY

GOD THE FATHER 02.08.2025

The threats to the Earth of celestial bodies will continue, and of one in particular that will arrive earlier than you have been told...

ST RAPHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.29.2025

The Earth is in danger, even if it this is not being announced. The sun is sending out strong flares: the earth will be the center of one of them. Therefore, the children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ must pray with the heart; the force of prayer will hold back so much damage of which the human race is unaware. You should pray and offer up - prepare for what is coming. (cf. James 5:16; Phil. 4:6-7)

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.29.2024

Children of Our Queen and Mother, the pain caused and that will yet be caused to Our King and Lord Jesus Christ will lead all areas of the life of humanity to regress; the sun will be obscured and cold will come over you. It is only those who continue faithfully waiting for the fulfillment of God's Will and those who maintain their faith who will see the light that they carry in their souls and will not live in darkness.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.05.2024

The sun's level of aggression towards the Earth is dangerous; fires will be extensive, and My children will perish as a result. Coronal mass ejections will be so strong that it will be impossible to prevent them from affecting My children, altering their health. DANGER IS APPROACHING FOR HUMANITY FROM THE VAST UNIVERSE, BEING A SOURCE OF UNCERTAINTY AND GREAT DISTRESS FOR EVERYONE. YOU WILL FEEL AS IF YOU ARE GOING TO PERISH...

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.02.2024

Beloved little children, do not expose yourselves to the sun: it will cause great damage to the Earth. Darkness is approaching, advancing little by little upon Earth, and how many of My children will perish because of having mocked My Announcements. With its energy, the sun will cause the Earth to shake in one place and another with great force.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.04.2022

The sun will strike the Earth strongly with a solar storm, leaving the Earth in darkness and leaving humanity silenced and shaken at the same time. At nightfall, humanity will light itself with what it has prepared for this purpose. At night do not go out of your homes; pray as a family or alone but PRAY.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.24.2022

The Earth is a receiver not only for celestial bodies coming from space, but also for what man himself has taken and placed in space, not foreseeing that the effects of the solar storms that the sun is generating at this time will affect some of these satellites that will be one more danger for humanity.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11,29,2023

A heavenly body will cause fear on Earth; it will lightly graze the Earth's magnetic field, which will be enough to cause catastrophic events, and yet you still do not convert...

Observe the tectonic faults running across the Earth: these have been activated from deep within the Earth, which is shaking forcefully. The layers of the Earth will change in some areas.

iii. RELATED TO THE COASTAL ZONES

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.01.2024

The great war in the Middle East will intensify; the darkness will be taken advantage of to invade great cities of Europe by surprise. Italy will be taken by surprise; by land and by air fire will suddenly arrive. Great ships will arrive; almost of out breath, men will disembark and enter the land, and laments will be heard. Bombs falling from airplanes into the water of the sea will cause a tsunami that will lash the land of various countries, causing death.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 07.04.2024

Creation and nature itself, knowing that everything is approaching and that it is mostly going to be destroyed at this time, is reacting and will continue to react. This is why the waters are purifying the earth, the winds are shaking everything, the water of the seas is rushing in towards the coasts and beyond; this is why the volcanoes will erupt in a chain, even the most dangerous ones, because Creation perceives what man has planned. For this reason, little children, being creatures of My Divine Son, change, repent before the dreaded moment arrives.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.17.2024

Beloved children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, the waters will flood the coasts in order to cleanse human wickedness, this being a form of purification.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 01.10.2024

YOU ARE EXPERIENCING THE SUFFERING OF HUMANITY IN GENERAL. What has been foretold is coming with force: the seas are stirred up from the seabed, moving the waters, which are unleashed against coastal cities. Silent tsunamis will come to countries unannounced. Little children, do not be careless regarding the sea, it will become agitated from one moment to the next and you will suffer as a result of excessive confidence and disobedience towards calls for prudence.

COMMENTARY BY LUZ DE MARIA 06.20.2023

Our Mother let me see a vision:

I saw so much suffering on Earth: the sun, man's ally, was at its maximum stage of activity, emitting great suffocating heat towards the Earth, and the level of the tides was rising by the coasts. I saw Angels of the Lord praying and adoring Christ in the Blessed Sacrament of the Altar, protecting countries, coasts and cities.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 08.29.2021

As Mother I invite each of you to stay where you are settled; only those who live near the coasts should move away from the coasts. The seas will enter the land and some of them have underwater mountains which at some point will come to the surface.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.04.2021

Beloved people, pray, the water of the ocean will hurtle towards the coast; islands and volcanoes will emerge from the sea, making My children afraid.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.12.2020

My people, pay attention: the Earth moves from its axis and will continue to do so; the waters of the seas will invade a large part of the coasts and inexplicable phenomena will occur in the water; the whole earth shakes at the relentless sun, volcanoes erupt and man does not pay attention, he tries to minimize what is happening and says that the wait is long; instead you ought to thank My Mother, who intercedes for humanity.

iv. RELATED TO POLITICAL AND SOCIAL ISSUES

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 08.09.2024

You have observed the danger in which humanity is living throughout the Earth; there is no safe place at this time of spiritual confusion, of social, educational, moral and civil turmoil in the nations. Countries are contaminated by civil wars: most countries will enter into this contamination.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 03.27.2024

Children, great rebellions are arising in the nations; My children, avoid large crowds and places where there are large crowds, because terror is taking hold of the nations, My children, and I do not want you to suffer.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 02.18.2023

Humanity is involved in social, religious and political upheavals, struggling for subsistence. Being immersed in the things of the world, you are rushing towards the precipice and this Mother suffers great pain....

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 08.11.2022

The pursuit of advanced arms is the major objective of the powers at this time, and possessing armaments is the objective of some small nations that are communist satellites and which at this moment are preparing to be delegates of communism in their regions. Similarly, other powers are embracing a number of countries and providing them with armaments for supposed defensive purposes in countries that do not possess weapons. My Divine Son condemns both positions.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.15.2021

Humanity is being dominated, constantly dragged down by the elite, without their even having implemented any controls in the bodies of human beings. Every article that you purchase or the technology with which you communicate with your brothers and sisters is used to maintain control of all your movements.

The elite are stalking you from all sides without your wanting or seeking it. You are in the hands of the greatest manipulators of this generation who have one goal: to take you captive, make you their vassals and persecute you in an attempt to break you.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 21.09.2021

THE TIME HAS BEEN CUT SHORT.... Social uprisings will grow; communism is ready to attack humanity and plunge you into war.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY

08.02.2020

Time is moving towards the imposition of a single power that will come to govern humanity, and without reaction on the part of My children, they will find themselves in the hands of others.

v. RELATED TO THE FALL OF THE ECONOMY

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.12.2024

The economy of countries will be paralyzed; My children will be greatly affected. There will be no movement in the places dedicated so that the economy of the nations be maintained.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 08.09.2024

Beloved children, food shortages are approaching by leaps and bounds, as well as the crisis in the world economy. You know that when they go into economic panic, human beings forget the Commandments, and everyone fights for their survival.

THE ECONOMY WILL SUFFER THE COLLAPSE THAT I HAVE ANNOUNCED TO YOU, LEAVING MY CHILDREN IN ECONOMIC POVERTY.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 11.12.2023

Beloved, the economy is gradually falling and money as you know it at the moment will be of no use, unless you place the seal of the Antichrist upon yourselves. At that time, do not despair: My Angels will give you food coming down from My House and the innocent will be delivered from such evil.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

06.06.2023

THE ECONOMY WILL COLLAPSE SEQUENTIALLY. From one moment to the next you will be obliged to acquire what is necessary before it falls, for when it falls the economy will fall everywhere.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.24.2022

Do not be surprised at the economic collapse of great powers. As creatures of Faith, you should maintain the tranquility of those who know that they are protected by their Lord and God.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.20.2023

THE ECONOMY WILL BECOME UNSTABLE AND THEN HUMANITY WILL PANIC. In order to advance in terms of power, they will melt down metal and paper will be burned, implementing what has been announced, and most countries will welcome the new currency.

vi. RELATED TO FOOD SHORTAGE

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.16.2025

Famine will cause torment for those who have not kept provisions. I am Merciful and I feed the hungry, if they do not have food: I am a Father, "I Am who I Am" (Ex. 3:11-14).

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.30.2024

MY CHILDREN, THERE IS NO TIME FOR YOU TO CONTINUE WITHOUT PAYING ATTENTION TO MY CALLS. It is necessary for each one of you to reserve what you can in a safe place while you have time to do so. It is

important to have everything prepared and taken care of, as the famine is going to be severe.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.01.2024

Famine will take hold of the nations as part of what evil is hiding in order to subdue you. Do not despair - you have the blessed grapes and where you do not have grapes, use another solid fruit; but above all, you have the Holy Eucharist which strengthens you. It will satisfy your hunger and keep you in great peace. In those moments the Angels themselves will give nourishment to the innocent.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 06.06.2024

My children, the climate has changed throughout the Earth. Crops will be lost due to the suffocating heat and heavy rains will also ruin the crops. Thus great famine is becoming widespread on Earth, but do not lose faith, because the great nations that live in opulence will fall into poverty and the nations that live in poverty will have food after the great trial

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 04.23.2024

My Divine Son consoles you and gives you signs and signals so that you would remain sure that He is with His children and constantly protects you. My Divine Son will give "Heavenly Manna" so that you would not surrender to diabolical hands on account of hunger.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 12.12.2023

The onslaughts of nature will be fiercer, and famine will continue its course across the Earth; some countries will take others by force in order to take away the goods they possess.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 09.25.2023

The planned famine is one of the scourges of this generation and one of the fiercest for My children. Millions will suffer from this evil and will be brought down by it, if my call to prepare the blessed grapes and let them serve as food is not heeded.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.25.2023

In the midst of famine, My Legions will bring humanity the food that satisfies hunger. Do not fear, God will not abandon you (Mt. 14: 13-21).

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 05.21.2022

THIS FAMINE IS NECESSARY FOR THE ANTICHRIST IN ORDER FOR HIM TO EXERT HIS FORCE UPON THE PEOPLES AND OBLIGE THEM TO SEAL THEMSELVES IN ORDER TO OBTAIN FOOD AND MEDICINES, AND FINALLY HE WILL DOMINATE THEM.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST COMMENTARY BY LUZ DE MARIA 04.12.2022

I looked upon our dearly beloved Lord Jesus Christ with extreme sorrow...

During this Divine Call He allowed me to see how humanity throughout almost all the Earth will fall prey to hunger and prey to the oppressive yoke of what they call "one order for all".

I saw human despair increasing with famine as a result of the scarcity not only of food, but also of medicines and hospital assistance. In the midst of so much human suffering, I was shown war advancing mercilessly, with two countries in North America being attacked and chaos taking hold of Europe.

I was shown how in Argentina the meekness of this nation will change into impatience and aggression.

I was allowed to see the Love of our Blessed Mother who does not turn away from Her children. Whoever welcomes Her Maternal Love will never be abandoned by this Mother whom we have received at the foot of the Cross of glory and majesty.

vii. RELATED TO THE FAMILY

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 12.22.2023

Beloved children, you live at a time when evil has resolved to destroy families and to implant within the human race the desire to carry out the insinuations of the Devil, in order to bring forward the coming of the Antichrist, causing humanity to fight - "people against people, nation against nation" (Mt. 24: 7).

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 04.29.2023

The value of the Gift of Life is hated by the Devil; therefore I ask you to remain on alert. The Devil hates the institution of the family (cf. Gen. 1:26-28), he hates innocence and hates the human race. The Devil does not abandon his plans: he always continues going forward to crush God's children.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.24.2023

PROTECT YOUR FAMILIES:

The Devil is especially attacking the institution of the family. Do not give the Devil the opportunity to act through your imprudence; be cautious.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.06.2022

Families have been transformed into places of individualism and cruelty, of pain and not of education or love: a favorable result expected by the elite.

viii. RELATED TO THE MICROCHIP

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.01.2022

Woe to those who, because of the coming famine, because of sickness, in order to maintain the appearance of security, will reject the Divine Seal and replace it with the seal and distinctive mark of the Antichrist!

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.28.2022

Communism has taken over governments and the elite are appointing them, making the poor poorer; the middle class is falling into poverty and large capitalists will see their status vanish if they refuse to implant the seal of evil (Rev. 13:16-17).

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 07.12.2022

FACED WITH THE FALL OF THE ECONOMY, PEOPLE WILL TURN TO WHAT IS OFFERED TO YOU AND WILL FALL INTO THE HANDS OF THE ANTICHRIST.

The microchip in the bodies of My children is the seal for being be able to buy and sell, in exchange for losing Eternal Life, in order to feel that material security to which you are so accustomed. DO NOT LOSE YOUR SOUL (Lk. 9: 22-25)! How My Son grieves because of it! How My Son grieves!

People of My Son, once the microchip is implanted in you, they will dominate your minds, ruling over you so that you would work and act as the power of evil commands you.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 05.07.2022

REMAIN ON CONSTANT ALERT. THE MARK OF EVIL WILL BE UNMASKED; HUMANITY WILL BE SUMMONED IN ORDER TO BE "SEALED". DO NOT LOSE ETERNAL LIFE, CHILDREN OF GOD, DO NOT LOSE IT.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.06.2021

Do not allow them to seal you with the microchip: it will be imposed on humanity. Keep in mind that you will have to be strong and firm in the Faith to refuse to acquire what you need, and to save your souls.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 03.14.2021

CHILDREN, MY SON'S FAITHFUL PEOPLE, YOU ARE LIVING IN ALL SORTS OF WARFARE; you do not see weapons like those used in wars, but war is growing before your eyes. Temporary limits are being imposed on you regarding travel from one country to another, preparing you for the arrival of the "microchip", without which you will not be able to buy or sell, nor to leave your home or receive medical assistance; you will not be able to move from one place to another if you refuse to be marked (Rev. 13:16-17).

ix. RELATED TO WAR

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 01.23.2025

Beloved children, peace is not peace. Evil is on Earth, having penetrated so much into My children that they have allowed it. War will make its entry more forcefully, causing greater destruction.

Human beings have made pacts with the Devil in order to triumph over other nations. For this reason, fire is present on Earth in different places so that man would feel fear and see that the fire of hell has reached human beings, with everyone suffering because of the evil that dwells in hearts that reject My Divine Son. HOWEVER, THE DEVIL, BY DIVINE ORDER, WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DO ANYTHING AGAINST THIS MOTHER, AND I HAVE DEMONSTRATED THIS (cf. Gen. 3, 15).

ST MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.19.2024

The actions of the rulers of countries in possession of nuclear weapons are accelerating the start of war on a global level, bringing forward what are the birth pangs for humanity. Creation will be damaged; men persecuted for their religion will be taken hostage and forced to fight against their own brothers to the point of killing them.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 05.01.2024

In the midst of the war, an unthinkable catastrophe will occur that will weaken the war itself. I am warning you by Divine Order.

As the war between nations will lead to a religious war, Our Queen and Mother is attentive to all her children, being the Mother who will defend the children of her Son.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.05.2024

More countries will become involved in the war and the scenario will become more chaotic. Secret technology, created for war and unknown to humanity, will come to light at the height of the Third World War.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.19.2022

The core of the war is not what is being presented to you, but rather the economy of the country of the North and the bear's desire for power. Do not look on the surface, go deeper.

(At this moment Saint Michael, the Archangel gives me the vision of a giant bear watching everything that is happening next to it. I look at it and it makes an impression: nothing escapes its notice, it anticipates everything. I also see the eagle that represents the country of the North, going from one place to another; it comes and goes insistently in search of support, but the bear does not need support: it has in its hands a totally unknown weapon, which will help it neutralize its adversaries).

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.13.2022

As Prince of the Heavenly Legions, I must affirm to you that war is not a matter of words, but painful and bloody deeds, of plans drawn up to invade Europe and part of America together with some islands and some countries of the East. People will therefore be aliens wandering from country to country. They will be caught by surprise without even thinking about it. The persecutors will arrive without being expected and like a plague they will invade by air and land in their desire to take over Europe, reaching various countries.

Europe will be struck in various places. The invasion of the nations will be sudden, it will be unexpected - you will be going about your business when you will hear and see the airplanes above you and the weapons of war entering your countries.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 08.07.2022

My People, you will hear the roar of war in the Balkans: treachery and death are coming to these lands. The struggles now and later will be for water, which will become exceedingly scarce. The human race has not appreciated it and the high temperatures will cause it to evaporate.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.03.2022

You are keeping your eyes on the two countries at war, this being the means by which you are being distracted, downplaying the importance of other countries in conflict. Keep in mind that there will be the death of a leader in the Balkans, which will immediately lead to war between nations.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 08.22.2022

The war continues its advance - that war that you do not see, that war that has activated the moment of the great blackout, that war which will soon bring down the world economy, that war which has been planned and directed by the interests of the elite, who will then emerge in order to impose its laws, its government, its economy, its religion and its education on the peoples.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 10.10.2022

THEY WILL MAKE USE OF NUCLEAR ENERGY, AND ONCE THESE DEVICES OF THE DEVIL HIMSELF HAVE BEEN USED, SILENCE WILL

OVERCOME YOU, FEAR WILL TAKE HOLD OF YOU FACING THE ARRIVAL OF EVENTS FORETOLD.

Natural resources will be contaminated...

Food will be contaminated...

Winter will strike and My people, confronting one another, becoming worse than rapacious animals, will make the life of My children a constant challenge.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 04.17.2022

MY BELOVED PEOPLE, LOOK WITH SALVE FOR YOUR SPIRITUAL EYES. At the heart of war is the spiritual struggle to reach Rome, which is a major objective.

VI. PRIVATE REVELATIONS ABOUT THE CHURCH

a. DENIAL OF SACRED SCRIPTURE

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.30.2024

FIDELITY TO MY WORD AND TO MY DESIGNS IS INDISPENSABLE SO THAT YOU WILL NOT BE CONFUSED.

My Law is one and you cannot vary it, whoever varies it is anathema (cf. Gal. 1: 6-9). Do not allow yourselves to be confused; the evil one wishes to divert My People's course.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.12.2024

MY CHURCH SUFFERS, SUFFERS AND IS CONFUSED TO THE POINT OF NOT BEING ABLE TO DIFFERENTIATE BETWEEN WHAT IS CONTRARY

TO THE FAITH AND WHAT IS REALLY MINE. The changes are not long in coming, they are so subtle that they will pass unnoticed by the majority.

MY LAW IS ONE AND IT IS NOT SUBJECT TO MEN....
MY LAW IS UNALTERABLE (CF. ROM. 10:4) ...

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 07.01.2023

Beloved children, you have built the "new Tower of Babel" in order to contradict the Holy Scriptures. It will not confuse humanity with its language, but with its spirituality. It will present you with attractive spiritual changes so that you would abandon the Holy Trinity.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 10.12.2021

Remain faithful to Me; receive Me in the Holy Eucharist. Do not travel along paths contrary to the Commandments, to the Sacraments and contrary to Sacred Scripture. This is not the time to interpret My Word according to your personal taste: be faithful to the true Magisterium of My Church.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.22.2021

STAY WITHIN THE TRUE MAGISTERIUM OF THE CHURCH, BE CREATURES OF PEACE, KNOWING THE DIVINE WORD CONTAINED IN SACRED SCRIPTURE.

b. SUPPRESSION OF THE EUCHARIST

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 10.27.2024

At this time, the lack of faith in My children has led them to believe that I am not present in the Holy Eucharist.

Pray, My children, pray: I am present in the Holy Eucharist, believe it or not; you will see miracles at the hands of My priests.

Be My same Love and respect My Real Presence in the Holy Eucharist.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.12.2020

As the earth shakes, so shakes My Church, welcoming modernist trends that are not My Will. Looking at Me from afar, they try to cancel Me out in My own house, they will allocate Me a distant place and then deny that I AM ALIVE, PRESENT AND BEATING IN THE EUCHARIST, DENYING MY TRANSUBSTANTIATION; My Mother will be denied even more.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.03.2019

MY REAL PRESENCE IN THE EUCHARIST IS DENIED BY THOSE WHO DO NOT BELIEVE IN THE MIRACLE OF TRANSUBSTANTIATION (cf. Mt 26,26-27; I Cor 11,24) AND MY CHILDREN WILL BE PREVENTED FROM RECEIVING ME. This will 11 be when My Own will gather in My Name, brought together by those who, fulfilling their priestly promises, call on them to receive Me.

c. DISPLACING THE BLESSED MOTHER AND REMOVING HER FROM EVERYTHING

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.31.2024

The plans are to weaken the faith of human creatures, above all the Catholic faith, to lead to the denial of the Transubstantiation in the Celebration of the Eucharist and lead the Church of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ to be orphaned, without a Mother.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

04.20.2023

Be creatures of prayer, of living in adoration of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ (cf. Phil. 4:6-7); go to receive the Body and Blood of Our King and praise Our Queen and Mother, the Blessed Virgin Mary; do not deny her, carry her in your hearts.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.01.2022

This is the moment for you to reflect:

EVIL WANTS TO SNATCH THE ARK OF THE NEW COVENANT FROM YOU AND LEAVE YOU ORPHANS IN THIS WORLD OF INIQUITY.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 04.02.2021

MY SON'S SACRIFICE FOR ALL WILL BE TRANSFORMED INTO A RELIGION FOR ALL, A RELIGION WITHOUT THE NOURISHMENT OF THE EUCHARIST, WITHOUT A MOTHER, WITHOUT COMMANDMENTS. THERE WILL BE ONE RELIGION, ONE LAW, ONE ORDER.

d) THE FALSE CHURCH

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 01.17.2023

The Church of My Son will live through moments of confusion in which the fog will not allow you to see clearly the source of the innovations directed at the Mystical Body of My Son and which are contrary to the Tradition of the Church.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.07.2022

You will see a new liberal religion, innovations within society, innovations within institutions. These innovations will be welcomed by a great number of My children, who will fall into them.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 11.22.2022

At this time confusion is spreading, just as weeds in the field grow in haste without being seen. Ideologies of great falsehood (Col. 2:8) are separating My children from the Mystical Body of My Divine Son. THE DIVINE WORD IS ONE ALONE: DO NOT FOLLOW THOSE WHO WISH TO DECEIVE YOU.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.04.2023

Pray, pray, children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, the modernist trends that have infiltrated the Church wish to remove the Master of the Flock from His own Church.

Pray, pray, children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ: the Devil is attacking the Church from within Her, causing confusion.

People of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, pray tirelessly, defend the Faith by the Hand of Our Queen and Mother, in the face of the growing confusion in the Church.

e. THE SINGLE RELIGION

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 06.20.2024

My children, My Son's Church must remain united in prayer in and out of season, as the enemy of the soul is pouncing on humanity. During the time of Purification, the despair into which My children who remain distant will fall, will drive them into confusion out of desperation, and they will be led by the Devil into the great trap of a single religion.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

08.03.2023

Man is becoming entrenched in evil and chaos is coming. Religion will be undermined, and society dulled.

THEY WILL IMPOSE A SINGLE RELIGION; PEOPLE WILL TURN AGAINST ONE ANOTHER OVER THE SINGLE RELIGION AND PERSECUTIONS WILL EVEN COME WITHIN FAMILIES.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 04.12.2022

There are so many who wish to omit My Word, the Commandments and the Sacraments in order to bring forth the new religion, which is total licence and the renunciation of Me and My Mother.... They will deny the Creed and the Our Father will be changed.

f. THE SCHISM OF THE CHURCH

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.02.2024

You are not heading into easy times: these are moments of great pain due to such great offenses in My Church. My Heart is bleeding, I am not respected, and My churches are being taken over by Freemasonry, which does not delay in dividing My Church until it goes into schism.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 01.09.2023

The Church of My Son is becoming more divided. My favored sons are divided. An attack will cause the Church of My Son to go into schism. Pray, My children, pray for the Church; she has entered into trial... Fog has covered her and schism approaches.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.22.2021

The Church of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ is being shaken; conflicts will lead her into Schism. Keep the Faith, do not despair and do not be scattered; you are protected by My Legions, and the Divine Will has granted Our Queen and Mother the power to defeat Satan.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 07.28.2019

SCHISM WILL NOT BE LONG IN COMING, THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CLERGY ARE COMING INTO THE LIGHT AND THE PEOPLE OF WELCOME WHAT **ALLOWS** GOD THEM GREATER LICENTIOUSNESS, FEW BEING THOSE WHO DO NOT WANT REFORMS THAT DISTORT THE TRUE DOCTRINE. Because of which scandals will be ever greater and more frequent. The children of God are going astray, accepting with great folly the immorality and falsehood that allow them to work and act in disobedience to God's Law, invalidating the Commandments, fasting and prayer itself so that evil moves with greater freedom among the children of God. Evil will tell you: you are deceived, you have been deceived! Nothing has existed - neither Scripture, nor the Commandments, nor the Sacraments, it all has all been in order to manipulate humanity.

g. THE DESOLATION, ABOMINATION, AND PROFANATION IN THE TEMPLES

GOD THE FATHER

02.08.2025

My churches are vandalized before the eyes of My children...

My altars are desecrated before the eyes of My children...

My priests are attacked before the eyes of My children...

My male and female religious are not safe in some countries...

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST

03.15.2024

Pray My children, pray for My Church: a part of My children are in confusion. Some of My Churches have been and will continue to be desecrated, while those who should take care of My House permit their use as places of entertainment. How My Heart is afflicted!

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.19.2024

I GRIEVE, MY CHILDREN, I GRIEVE OVER SO MANY OFFENSES, OVER SO MUCH PROFANATION OF WHAT IS SACRED!

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.10.2022

THE DESOLATION OF THE SOUL HAS ARRIVED AT THIS TIME WHEN THEY ARE REMOVING THE MOST HOLY TRINITY FROM PLACES RESERVED FOR PRAYER AND WORSHIP, WHEN THEY ARE REMOVING OUR QUEEN AND MOTHER FROM THEM.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.16.2022

Evil is rising; you will think that I have abandoned you when you see your brothers rise up against Me in broad daylight. The altars in My Churches will be destroyed and all that they contain will be eliminated.

Humanity wishes to erase every trace of Me. It will not succeed - it would be as if it could live without air. It will be a time of pain and hope, as I will send My beloved Saint Michael the Archangel, guarding My beloved Angel of Peace to sustain you with My Word, to call you to continue resisting until the imminent arrival of My Mother who will fight evil.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

05.27.2021

The power of the beast will dwell in some current Sanctuaries; the sacrilege will be total, the children of God will return to the catacombs; desolation is coming at the center of Christendom, images will be exchanged for idols and the Body and Blood of Our Lord Jesus Christ hidden.

h. THE PERSECUATION OF CHRISTIANS

GOD THE FATHER

02.08.2025

How many of you know that after the Warning the persecution of My children will continue?

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.12.2024

The persecution of Christians has begun, hence from now on all My Heavenly Legions remain on Earth, protecting and helping you.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.19.2024

The actions of the rulers of countries in possession of nuclear weapons are accelerating the start of war on a global level, bringing forward what are the birth pangs for humanity. Creation will be damaged; men persecuted for their religion will be taken hostage and forced to fight against their own brothers to the point of killing them.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST

08.21.2023

The majority of My children suffer persecution by those who do not love Me and persecution of their own making. Not only are My children persecuted, but they will be more so, since My Divine Love within human beings makes

the enemy of the soul vomit, trapping them through base instincts and the pride that is the master of fallen souls.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 06.10.2023

Beloved children, you know well that because of your love of My Divine Son you are and will be persecuted severely by the enemies of the Church. WITHOUT DOUBTING THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED THE EUCHARISTIC SACRAMENT, TRULY PRESENT IN THE HOLY EUCHARIST, NOURISH YOURSELVES CONTINUALLY WITH THE EUCHARISTS YOU HAVE RECEIVED, TOGETHER WITH TIMES OF ADORATION BEFORE THE MOST HOLY SACRAMENT. BELOVED CHILDREN, YOU ARE MY DIVINE SON'S DWELLING PLACE, AND, AS SUCH, BE A WORTHY DWELLING PLACE.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.19.2020

Be assured that persecution will not decrease but will instead be reinforced against the true People of Our Lord and King Jesus Christ.

In remote locations, in the crypts of ancient churches, in improvised places, perhaps the most unlikely, you will come to hear Holy Mass and receive Christ present in the Holy Eucharist from the hands of faithful Priests, adorers of the Eucharistic Christ, who love Our Queen and Mother of Heaven and Earth. For there will be a clear and definitive division between those who remain attached to the true Magisterium of the Church of Our Lord and King Jesus Christ and those who have been living as Pharisees within the Church, already being persecutors of the faithful people.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 05.23.2020

Beloved, those who preach are muzzled, those who raise their voices are brought down, those who make known the Word of My Son and Mine are punished terribly. Silence and the silencing of My children guarantee the triumph of evil over those who are naive.

VII. UPCOMING EVENTS

a. THERE WILL BE MANY SIGNS

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.16.2025

This is the moment when My children, impregnated by impiety, cause horror and fear wherever they go, forgetting that I am the Owner of Heaven and Earth and that I will send to the man lacking peace, "the great sign" that will tell them that the moment so long awaited and ignored by the majority has arrived.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 12.23.2024

THINK, MY CHILDREN: remain attentive to what is happening; never think that you know everything, because that is not the case, but you must indeed be more observant regarding the signs and signals that are occurring in front of you.

Pray, My children, pray, humanity will receive a Great Signal, which will also be an unforgettable lesson.

COMMENTARY BY LUZ DE MARIA

At this moment we must bear in mind that a sign is not the same thing as a signal. They are not the same: the sign is something that happens before a change of what we are used to experience. Signals tell us that something is coming – the signal is an indicator that something is coming now. Let us therefore us keep on looking, knowing how to distinguish between them.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.29.2023

THE TIME IS COMING WHEN EACH PERSON WILL SEE SIGNS AND SIGNALS, DEPENDING ON THEIR SPIRITUAL STATE.

i. UNIVERSAL APPARITION OF THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.01.2024

OUR QUEEN AND MOTHER UNDER THE TITLE OF THE QUEEN AND MOTHER OF THE END TIMES WILL BE SEEN BY MANY OF YOU, BEING A CONSOLATION FOR THE SOUL AND BRINGING NOURISHMENT TO MEN SO THAT THEY WOULD NOT DESPAIR.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 10.04.2023

THE MOMENT YOU SEE MY MOTHER RADIANT ON HIGH AND ARE IN A STATE OF GRACE, THE SICK WILL BE HEALED.

GOD THE FATHER 08.07.2023

I will allow My Daughter, Mary Most Holy, to appear in the Basilicas of the whole world. My children worry when they learn that there are no Basilicas in their villages, but only far away from where they live. They quickly forget that where there is faith and where I am worshipped in spirit and truth as the Father of Humanity, My Love performs the greatest miracles through My Love for humanity.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 07.07.2023

Our Queen and Mother will show herself to humanity, but how many will venerate Her? Our Queen and Mother will be present in the world's Basilicas and in humble, hidden chapels where human beings, in humility, worship the "King of kings and Lord of lords" in fullness.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 05.21.2023

You will see Me on high and will know that I am your Mother.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 05.03.2023

You will see Me in the firmament throughout the Earth!
DO NOT BE AFRAID OF BEING DECEIVED...
IT WILL BE I, YOUR MOTHER, WHO, IN SEARCH OF MY CHILDREN,
WILL CALL YOU IN ONE WAY OR ANOTHER.

This is the sign that I remain with the children of My Divine Son, so that you will not be confused:

IN MY HAND I WILL CARRY A GOLDEN ROSARY AND WILL KISS THE CRUCIFIX WITH GREAT REVERENCE. YOU WILL SEE ME CROWNED BY THE HOLY SPIRIT UNDER THE TITLE OF QUEEN AND MOTHER OF THE END TIMES.

This apparition of Mine will occur when the war is at its worst.

Have Faith: do not fear, I am with you by Divine Will. You are My great treasure.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.28.2022

Many wish to approach great places of Marian Apparitions without considering that they may be left somewhere along the way; but God in His infinite Mercy has decreed that, in Marian Shrines throughout the world, His children will be blessed with the Miracle, and in some places very far from the main cities, the Most Holy Trinity will bless them as well.

IN ALL THESE SANCTUARIES WATER WILL POUR FORTH TO HEAL THOSE WHO ARE SICK IN BODY AND SOUL.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 05.21.2022

IN THE PRINCIPAL SANCTUARIES DEDICATED TO MY MOST HOLY MOTHER IN EACH COUNTRY, A MIRACLE OF MATERNAL LOVE WILL OCCUR FOR 3 HOURS. MY MOTHER WILL ALERT YOU IN ADVANCE.

ii. SIGN IN THE ADVOCATION OF OUR LADY OF GUADALUPE

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 11.22.2023

YOU WILL BE WITNESSES OF A GREAT SIGN THAT I WILL GIVE YOU UNDER MY TITLE OF EMPRESS OF THE AMERICAS, OUR LADY OF GUADALUPE, WHERE I PROTECT THE WHOLE EARTH AND THE STARS ILLUMINATE YOU.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.12.2023

A GREAT SIGN WIIL OCCUR IN THE SKY AND OUR QUEEN AND MOTHER OF GUADALUPE WILL ASTOUND HUMANITY, SHOWING WHAT HAS NOT YET BEEN REVEALED.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST

09.07.2023

Pray, My children, pray that you would be able to see the Great Miracle that My Mother keeps with her under the title of Our Mother of Guadalupe.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 12.27.2021

EACH OF THE STARS ON MY MANTLE MULTIPLY TO INFINITY IN ORDER TO ILLUMINATE THE PATH OF EACH ONE OF MY CHILDREN.

iii. SIGN IN THE SKY PRIOR TO A SEVERE EVENT ON EARTH

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 09.25.2023

YOU ARE APPROACHING MOMENTS WHEN YOU WILL SEE A SIGN IN THE SKY - NOT THE ONE PRIOR TO THE "GREAT WARNING" BUT PRIOR TO A SERIOUS EVENT ON EARTH.

An event will occur that will leave human creatures astonished. A religious leader will die by unjust hands, unleashing worldwide astonishment.

iv. SIGN IN THE SKY BEFORE THE WARNING

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 11.22.2022

You will see a great sign in Heaven, at which some of My children will be terrified, and believers will know that, being at war, the Warning is near.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 04.22.2022

I WILL SEND A MERCIFUL GRACE FOR ALL HUMANITY SO THAT IT MIGHT BE RECEIVED BY MY CHILDREN WHO SO DESIRE IT.

THIS GRACE PRIOR TO THE WARNING WILL DESCEND FROM MY HOUSE; IT WILL BE GIVEN THROUGHOUT THE EARTH AND A MULTITUDE OF MY CHILDREN WILL FEEL GREAT PAIN AT THEIR OFFENSES AND WILL BEG MY FORGIVENESS.

ONLY IN THIS WAY WILL SOME OF MY CHILDREN JOIN MY TRUE CHURCH AND WALK TOWARDS ME IN ORDER TO SAVE THEIR SOULS.

COMMENTARY BY LUZ DE MARIA 04.22.2022

Brothers and sisters, I share with you that Our Lord Jesus Christ appeared looking radiant. I saw many human beings on Earth who looked very small and bowed down somewhat by the weight of sin, but the light emanating from Divine Mercy made them look up, and I saw many human creatures crying out for forgiveness of their sins. Our Lord smiled and, stretching out His blessed Hand before the repentant sinners, I saw them bend their knees and then stand up, and they were no longer bowed down - a sign that they had been forgiven by Divine Mercy.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.18.2017

DAYS PRIOR TO THE WARNING AND BEFORE YOU SEE MY CROSS IN THE SKY, YOU WILL SEE FOR ONE DAY THROUGHOUT THE PLANET A GREAT SIGN THAT WILL TELL YOU THAT THE WARNING IS ALREADY UPON YOU. YOU WILL SEE A CIRCLE IN THE SKY AND FROM THE CIRCLE A RAY OF LIGHT WILL DESCEND THAT WILL NOT TOUCH ANYONE, AND THAT NO ONE WILL BE ABLE TO TOUCH. THIS SIGN IS ONE MORE GRACE FOR YOU THROUGH THE INTERCESSION OF MY MOST HOLY MOTHER.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 10.13.2014

PAY ATTENTION, LOOK UP; DO NOT FORGET THAT THE BLESSING FOR MAN WILL COME FROM ABOVE. What I have prophesized will be manifested in the Firmament before the Warning. The signs in the Firmament will announce to man the coming of great calamities.

b. THE SACRED HEARTS WILL BE SEEN

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 07.18.2023

PAY ATTENTION, CHILDREN, PAY ATTENTION!

In the churches where the Sacraments are lived out correctly and especially where the Eucharist is celebrated, our Sacred Hearts will be seen.

c. GREAT MIGRATIONS

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 12.27.2023

Human beings will migrate to where the climate is less hostile in order to save themselves and produce food. You must know how to sow the land: there will be no food in the supermarkets. You must sow the earth while those who rule the nations have not yet turned to nuclear energy.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 11.22.2023

The elements have been altered: they will not be the same as before - Fire, Earth, Air and Water have changed, they will not return to being as they were in the past, as will also be the case with the climate on Earth. How many will migrate in search of better options for living in climates more compatible with that to which they are accustomed!

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 11.17.2023

You will face variations in the climate, which will be more aggressive the whole time, to the point where you will have to learn to live in hostile environments. Skin will change in order to resist the climate wherever you live. Multitudes will migrate in search of less hostile climates, where the climate will be more hospitable than what they have to endure.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 11.12.2023

Some regions of the earth will serve as a refuge for My children. They will undertake great migrations in search of fertile lands where they will feel blessed.

d. DARKNESS COMES

GOD THE FATHER 02.08.2025

You have not believed in what I have revealed to you, and when darkness covers the Earth, lamentations will also cover the Earth...

ST. RAPHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.29.2025

YOU FEAR THE DARKNESS THAT IS APPROACHING FOR HUMANITY AND YET YOU DO NOT HAVE A HOLY FEAR OF GOD: IT IS NOT THAT YOU SHOULD BE AFRAID OF GOD, IT IS THAT YOU SHOULD ABANDON YOURSELVES TO THE FATHER WHO LOVES HIS CHILDREN. (cf. Heb. 13:5-6)

In the darkness you do not see the light, because darkness does not attract light. If at a certain moment a person repents and asks for forgiveness, a ray of light is born and dispels fear. In the darkness you will not see external light,

but if a person lives searching for the good and the common good, the light of the Holy Spirit will make them see light. (cf. Jn. 8:12)

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.16.2025

Pray, My children, pray, the great blackout is coming; My children who remain on the path of conversion, My children who repent, will see light in the midst of darkness.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 01.23.2025

The time is approaching when you will not be able to communicate as you do now. Darkness caused by man and darkness of the soul are coming: one darkness caused by man and another by Divine Design.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.30.2024

A very great darkness is advancing upon the earth; when everything is ready, the great darkness will fall upon all the Earth. This darkness will fall at the moment least expected; many of my children will not reach their homes because they will find themselves in the hubbub of the mundane.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.26.2024

Darkness is coming, not only the darkness caused by the blackout that will affect everything built by man, but the spiritual darkness will be accentuated in those who do not love, do not worship, do not wait for the "King of kings and Lord of lords" (Rev. 19:16). Faith is necessary at all times.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.29.2024

You will experience darkness and the desolation of not being able to communicate as you have until now with your loved ones on other continents, in other countries and places; silence on Earth will do good in the face of the current hubbub. Then some will believe in the revelations and regret not having believed.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 12.17.2023

The time is coming when you will have to remain in your homes due to the darkness. The darkness awaiting you is the darkness of all darknesses, and you will either see or not see, depending upon the spiritual state of each person, and having to remain in your homes with the bare necessities, that time will seem like an eternity to you. The Three Days of Darkness and the great global blackout await you.

e. LIVING WITHOUT ELECTRICITY OR TECHNOLOGY

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 05.08.2024

The sun will continue to cause severe damage to communications and electricity will be lost in some places.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.01.2023

You see how catastrophes are happening around the Earth, how the peoples are being surprised again and again by nature: the earth sinks and the rivers suddenly sweep populations away, and yet My children are not ready to belong more to Me than to evil. The sun is bringing changes upon the Earth and this will be when you will not have electricity and means of communication: perhaps then you will stop in your tracks and some will turn their eyes to Me and decide to change.

I have warned you about the sun and how it will affect you, but few are preparing for how to survive without electricity and technology. It will be then that My children will be forced to go back to being like their ancestors and use various methods for lighting, cooking and necessities.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 12.23.2021

We have called you to prepare yourselves for living without the comforts offered by electricity and means of communication.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.12.2021

Be prepared! Minds taken over by evil have arranged for humanity to suffer without the technology and advancements that you enjoy, without electricity or food. Comfort will be a dream of the past.

f. EVENTS IN THE HEAVENS

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.23.2022

When you hear an unknown rumbling, do not leave your homes or places where you are; do not leave until you receive orders to move. If a strong and unknown glow appears, do not look at it; on the contrary, keep your head to the ground and do not look until the glow disappears, and do not move from the place where you are.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.27.2023

You will hear about a cloud that will spread rapidly, carried by the wind. Without knowing its origin, the children of our King and Lord Jesus Christ will want to see what is happening. Do not go out but take shelter in a closed place without windows. In this way you will be protected and My Legions will guard you.

g. THE GREAT WARNING

GOD THE FATHER

02.08.2025

I alerted you to the Warning so that you would prepare yourselves in spirit, yet how many believe?

How many of you know that after the Warning the persecution of My children will continue?

How many of you know that you will receive permanent help from My Heavenly Legions after the Warning?

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 07.21.2024

The time is coming when you will stand before yourselves and each person will look at how they have lived and how they have been regarding the Commandment to love one's neighbor.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.17.2024

AS PRINCE OF THE HEAVENLY LEGIONS I HAVE TO TELL YOU THAT YOU ARE VERY CLOSE TO THE WARNING.

YOU HAVE FORGOTTEN ABOUT THE WARNING, AND THIS IS NOT HOW IT SHOULD BE! Keep in mind that during the Warning you will experience the pain of every act contrary to the Divine Will; the pain will be spiritual, but at some points you will feel that the pain is united to the flesh, being almost physical.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 03.27.2024

You are going to experience darkness, My children - the darkness of the soul when you will see your sins even if they do not want to see them, and the power of the Holy Spirit will make your see yourselves as you are, without

masks, even if you do not want to. Darkness will come upon the Earth and make human beings feel alone on Earth.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 03.23.2022

At the Warning, all of My children will judge themselves, firstly on love towards Our Most Holy Trinity and then on love towards their brothers and sisters, and they will judge themselves on each of the Commandments...

THE MOST HOLY VIRIGN MARY 05.08.2023

Keep in mind that during an unusual synod you will receive a sign from Heaven, a harbinger of the approaching Warning.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.12.2021

The Warning is the greatest act of Divine Mercy for this generation, during which you see yourselves in a particular way, when you will experience the value of your actions or omissions.

The Warning will be the moment of Divine Mercy and Divine Recognition for those who have sacrificed themselves and who have chosen to belong to the Most Holy Trinity and Our Queen and Mother.

DIVINE MERCY IS NOT FINISHED: IT WILL GIVE OTHER OPPORTUNITIES TO ITS CHILDREN AFTER THE WARNING HAS PASSED.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 08.09.2021

My people, even some of you deny the Warning.... To deny the Warning is to deny that My Mercy is giving you an opportunity.

YOU WILL LOOK TO THE FIRMAMENT WITH FEAR AND WILL NOT KNOW WHAT TO DO. CALL UPON MY NAME AND SAY: HAIL MARY MOST PURE, CONCEIVED WITHOUT SIN.

h. PRESENTATION OF THE ANTICHRIST TO HUMANITY

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.30.2024

TODAY I ASK MY DAUGHTER LUZ DE MARIA TO REVEAL THE THIRD SECRET GIVEN TO HER BY MY MOTHER:

THE ANTICHRIST TAKES POWER OVER HUMANITY, WHICH IS GIVEN TO HIM BY THE ELITE IN TOTAL AND ABSOLUTE SECRECY, STARTING ON THE SECOND DAY OF OCTOBER 2024. FROM THEN ON, THE SUFFERING OF ALL MANKIND WILL INCREASE.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.01.2024 COMMENTARY BY LUZ DE MARIA

As the Second Secret was revealed to me, I was shown a hill towering above all places on Earth, and on that hill was standing Our Blessed Mother with St. Michael the Archangel beside her.

Our Blessed Mother introduces me to a man and tells me: he is the one who is coming to scourge humanity, the one who comes from a place located between three continents; raised and educated in his own country, he has succeeded in becoming influential abroad. His name is Alex, but he will be known by another name. This is the Antichrist.

Brothers and sisters, let us not wander in search of countries or persons; let us wait with Holy Patience so as not to fall into sin. Heaven wants us to know that the Antichrist exists and that he is ready to fulfill his mission.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 11.17.2023

Prepare, My children: famine will go from country to country, leaving its trail of pain, strengthen your faith in order to prepare. Face with tempting offers of health, food, clothing, many will go after the Antichrist and will come to reject eternal life.

The Antichrist will offer the unimaginable in order to snatch you away from the right path. Given the little or no information that My Son's people have about the life of My Divine Son, they do not know how they should behave in order to resemble My Divine Son in His works and actions.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 07.12.2023

THE STRUGGLE IS A SPIRITUAL ONE, MY CHILDREN: even if you hear of disasters, of wars, of events of nature, the struggle is above all spiritual, concerning the opening of the door for the Antichrist, who pours his evil upon humanity, preparing his public appearance.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.06.2023

As creatures belonging to this generation, you have not confronted evil as strongly as previous generations. The pestilence of sin resides in the Antichrist: the evil he possesses comes from hell itself – therefore, anger and persecution will come from the one who totally dominates him.

The Antichrist has great personality and the cunning to draw the masses and convince them, as he will not cause panic, but will attract by means of lies and deception. He is making treaties with some earthly powers of darkness in order to create chaos in humanity and separate people from their Lord and God, establishing a new religion and hindering assistance through mutual food, health and economic aid between countries. He will make humanity

surrender easily to him in order obtain what people need in order to subsist, without thinking about eternal salvation.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 03.22.2023

The Antichrist is walking on Earth and going from one country to another in those nations that have set themselves the same ideals, projects, ambitions, guidelines and norms, which will lead to their obligatory fulfillment.

MY CHILDREN ARE MOVING INCREASINGLY QUICKLY TOWARDS SUFFERING AT THE HANDS OF THE ANTICHRIST, WHO DOMINATES AND ALREADY DIRECTS THE GREAT CORPORATIONS OF THE WORLD.

The Antichrist is going across Europe, preparing the fall of that same Europe in war. The Bear has great power to bring humanity to a state of total alarm, starting with Europe itself.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.10.2022

I see so much of humanity running after the Antichrist because of not knowing Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, ignoring the fact that Our King and Lord Jesus Christ worked miracles and did not boast about it, but on the contrary, went away quickly.

What is different about the Antichrist is that he will announce the supposed "miracles" that he will do. You know full well that they will not be miracles, but works of evil: he will make use of demons so as to appear to raise someone from the dead. IT IS THEREFORE URGENT THAT YOU KNOW OUR KING AND LORD JESUS CHRIST DIRECTLY FROM HOLY SCRIPTURE: IN THIS WAY YOU WILL RECOGNIZE HIM AND NOT BE DECEIVED.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.06.2023

ACTING QUICKLY, THE ANTICHRIST IS STIRRING UP THE MINDS OF THE RULERS. The latter ally themselves, giving preference to uniting with the powerful, and among the peoples, humanity is entering into the same violence that is being relayed by all that surrounds humanity.

THE ANTICHRIST HAS ESTABLISHED ALLIANCES AND PACTS with which the human race itself has given him a place of preference over all of humanity, which he keeps at his orders.

i. ARRIVAL OF THE ANGEL OF PEACE

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.16.2025

Pray, My children, pray, My dearly beloved Angel of Peace looks at you, pleading for each one of you and for so many who, void of love, refuse to change. My Angel of Peace is humility itself, grieving over those who do not accept My Word, who refuse fraternity and the common good.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.29.2024

THE PRECURSOR OF ELIJAH'S ARRIVAL ON EARTH IS THE ANGEL OF PEACE; HE IS THE ONE WHO COMES TO OPEN THE WAY IN THE FACE OF THE TERRIBLE ACTIONS OF THE ANTICHRIST AGAINST THE PEOPLE OF OUR KING AND LORD JESUS CHRIST (cf. Mal. 4:5-6; cf. Mt. 17:10-11).

On account of this great Divine Plan, the Angel of Peace is an angel because he has the mission of being a Messenger of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ in order to unite you in fulfilling the Divine Will at the worst moment through which humanity will be living. The Angel of Peace, Messenger of the Divine Word - will open hearts...

will fertilize the soil of each heart with Divine Love...

will sow the seed so that the beloved Prophet Elijah would reap what is sown by a few faithful souls, restoring love in families before Our King and Lord Jesus Christ arrives in His Second Coming.

Children of the Most Holy Trinity, here is why the arrival of the Angel of Peace is important:

He will fight spiritually, intellectually and physically against the attacks of the Antichrist and his demonic legions...

It is he who will be alongside the faithful People and who will have the Divine Word in his mouth...

It is he who will convert a small number of human beings for the good of their souls and their salvation...

He will continue his Mission beside the Prophet Elijah, but in another part of the Earth...

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 01.02.2024

I INVITE YOU TO PRAY, REQUESTING THAT FROM NOW ON MY BELOVED ANGEL OF PEACE, WOULD SEND YOU BLESSINGS THAT ARE NECESSARY FOR YOU.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 03.08.2024

DO NOT FEAR, MY DIVINE SON IS PROTECTING YOU AND AS A MOTHER I HOLD MY PROTECTIVE MANTLE OVER MY CHILDREN. MY BELOVED ANGEL OF PEACE IS ASSISTING YOU ALREADY.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 11.12.2023

In the midst of war, the Antichrist will arrive and will provide food, medicine and everything that humanity needs. He will perform miracles in My Name, and how many will follow him and forget about Me! THIS IS WHY I WILL SEND MY ANGEL OF PEACE SO THAT, BEING MY REFLECTION, HE WOULD BEGIN TO PREACH ABOUT MY LOVE FOR HUMANITY, SO THAT SOME WOULD CONVERT.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.02.2023

PREPARE YOURSELVES: WHAT SEEMED FAR OFF IS NO LONGER FAR OFF. THE ANGEL OF PEACE WILL BRING YOU PEACE - NOT THAT WHICH MAN BELIEVES TO BE PEACE, BUT TRUE PEACE, THAT WHICH COMES FROM OUR KING AND LORD JESUS CHRIST.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 08.13.2023

MY BELOVED ANGEL OF PEACE WILL COME TO THE HELP OF THOSE WHO ASK HIM TO OVERTHROW THE DEVIL, to remove him from human beings who live with hearts of stone flooded by materialistic interests and ones foreign to living according to the Will of My Divine Son.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 12.05.2022

WAIT WITH HOLY PATIENCE FOR THE ANGEL OF PEACE, WHO WILL REVIVE THE HOPE THAT SOME OF YOU HAVE NOT LOST, BUT WHICH HAS BEEN WEAKENED BY SO MANY THINGS THAT YOU HAVE BEEN FACING.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.02.2023

I WILL SEND MY ANGEL OF PEACE TO HELP YOU, TO THE PLACES WHERE MY CHILDREN TAKE REFUGE.

j. THE THREE DAYS OF DARKNESS

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 11.06.2022

You are walking in darkness, the same darkness that will reach Earth and cover it completely; afterwards the Divine Light will come and will illuminate everything that exists.

COMMENTARY BY LUZ DE MARÍA

She announces the Three Days of Darkness and human folly to us. She points out for us events that are very near, so that we would be attentive, with Christ as the Master of our lives and consecrated to Our Blessed Mother.

k. THE GREAT CHASTISEMENT

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.09.2025

Evil spreads with greater force over the human creature, fading the need in man to live in accordance with the Divine Laws. This way of living, working and acting with human will, attracts the punishment of man to himself: bringing the scourge of water, the scourge that the earth will cause, the scourge of air and the scourge of fire when the human creature despises the Most Holy Trinity and Our Queen and Mother.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 06.13.2024

The time will come, My children, when what humanity has talked about will be fulfilled, but it cannot not imagine the scope of the Warning, the Great Chastisement, the deviation of the earth's axis and the great cataclysms that will cause some countries to be reduced to islands.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 02.15.2024

I love you, little children; I warn you, and you know full well what is going to happen because you know the Prophecies, but there are some children of Mine who only know what interests them most about the Prophecies, and what they may have left aside is the Great Chastisement that is going to fall on humanity, and what they have left aside may be what they are facing right now.

GOD THE FATHER 08.07.2023

You have continued with the madness of death at your own hands, and it will be humanity without My Protection that will come to initiate the greatest tragedy by sowing terror, atrocities and genocides, until My Hand stops you with a fierce chastisement.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 03.2009

There is fear today because of all that is happening, but you have human fear and I desire a different fear, the fear of losing Our fusion. Not a fear of punishment, or what is coming, or of the three days of darkness because if the heart is at peace, the soul is at peace, you will not see darkness; you will see and give the light of My Love. Do not be afraid due to what they tell you because in My faithful there will be no despair, no mortification; there will be light, there will be peace and love. You must be conscious of the need to separate yourselves from sin, and you must live in a state of grace.

VIII. TRIUMPH OF THE IMMACULATE HEART OF MARY

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.01.2024

THE TIME IS COMING WHEN OUR QUEEN AND MOTHER TOGETHER WITH MY CELESTIAL LEGIONS WILL PURSUE THE ANTICHRIST AND HIS FOLLOWERS IN ORDER TO FREE HUMANITY FROM EVIL.

OUR QUEEN AND MOTHER WILL TRIUMPH AND WILL CAST AND BIND THE DEVIL INTO THE LAKE OF FIRE, FROM WHICH HE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO COME OUT.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 06.13.2024

You do not see those who hide in dens so as not to be seen because they have offended their Lord and their God; you should praise My Divine Son because you will never be forsaken and I, as a Mother, will never forsake you, for we will see the Triumph of My Immaculate Heart for the glory of the Most Holy Trinity. People of My Son, do not falter, do not allow fear to make you fall; have faith and believe - believe because Divine Love has promised protection for you.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 12.02.2023

BELOVED CHILDREN, YOU ARE BEING PURIFIED AND WILL COME TO SEE THE TRUTHFULNESS OF MY CALLS. LIVE IN PEACE AND HOPE TO SEE THE TRIUMPH OF MY MOTHER'S IMMACULATE HEART.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 04.29.2023

AS THE TIME APPROACHES FOR THE FULFILLMENT OF MY REVELATIONS, EVIL IS ATTACKING THE CHURCH OF MY DIVINE SON, BUT MY IMMACULATE HEART WILL TRIUMPH.

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.24.2023

I defended the Father's Throne against the wiles of the Devil (Rev. 12:7-10); I will defend it again with my Heavenly Legions, and all human beings will see the Triumph of the Immaculate Heart of our Queen and Mother, "who will crush the head of the infernal serpent" (Gen. 3:15).

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.17.2022

Go forth, People of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, with firm Faith in the power of Our Queen and Mother, without doubting that in the end Her Immaculate Heart will triumph!

You will see every knee bow before Our Queen and every creature exclaim:

"Hail Mary Most Pure, Hail Mary Most Pure, Hail Mary Most Pure".

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 11.20.2021

MY IMMACULATE HEART WILL TRIUMPH AND THERE WILL BE TRINITARIAN LOVE THROUGHOUT THE EARTH.

THE EARTH WILL FLOW WITH MILK AND HONEY (Num. 13:27) AND THE CHILDREN OF THE HOLY TRINITY SHALL BE ITS REFLECTION.

IX. THE RETURN OF CHRIST, HIS SECOND COMING

"Look, I am coming soon! My reward is with me, and I will give to each person according to what they have done."

Revelation 22,12

ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.10.2024

He who is Righteous among the righteous will come to divide the wheat from the tares (cf. Mt. 13:24-30), to separate the Light from the darkness.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 03.27.2024

MY SON WILL COME TO THE AID OF HIS CHILDREN WHEN THIS GENERATION USES IINTELLIGENCE TO TRY TO EXTERMINATE ALL OF HUMANITY. MY SON WILL COME TO THE AID OF HIS CHILDREN AND WILL DEMONSTRATE ONCE AGAIN THAT HE IS THE KING OF THE UNIVERSE AND THE MASTER OF ALL CREATED THINGS (cf. Rev. 17:14; 1 Tim. 6:13-16).

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 05.24.2019

My Mother Prepares My Second Coming and She, by Her Hand, will bring My Angel of Peace to My Children so that He gives you My Love, My Guidance, and sustains you.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.02.2019

The Devil has usurped hearts and led them to edict norms that go against Me, those about which I have warned you and which you see before your eyes. My faithful do see them; those who do not love Me do not see evil in anything, but I will arrive when they least expect it.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.08.2018

AFTER THE GREAT EVENTS AND THE PURIFICATION OF MY PEOPLE, I WILL ARRIVE IN MY SECOND COMING AND THE VAULT OF HEAVEN WILL CHANGE COLOR. My Light will eclipse everything that exists, the

elements will remain static, the animals will be silent, men will prostrate themselves, and in stupefaction they will see the beauty of My Legions that, opening My way through the clouds, will allow My Light to be seen. You will have a faint view of My Father's Throne and will attain a reflection of My Holy Spirit.

Then My Legions will appear in the midst of the tones of the sunset and will seem to set the Sky alight with My Love. The waters will move not with a roar, but with a slight murmur so as not to diminish My Arrival. The earth, after shuddering, will make the most beautiful and pure colors of plants germinate. 47 THE HOLY LADDER WILL BE OPENED FROM MY FATHER'S HOUSE TOWARDS THE EARTH, AND THOSE WHO HAVE LIVED, SUFFERED, THOSE WHO HAVE BEEN PERSECUTED, BELITTLED, SILENCED, THE SLAVES AND MARTYRS, ALL WILL RISE AND WILL SAY IN ECSTASY: "MY LORD AND MY GOD!"

My Mother, making Herself present, will look at you and all will see Her. I will have separated the wheat from the tares. And everything will be renewed, My People will wear snow-white garments and Divine Love will be reborn in the hearts of My children.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGEN MARY 05.13.2013

Those of My children who remain protected under My Protection and maintain faith in the promise of salvation given by Me to those who live in fidelity, will be the ones who in the midst of the power come down from on high, will accompany My Son in His Second Coming, they will be the Holy Remnant, who gathered under the great shepherd, will see with joy among acclamations, the final triumph of the true Church.

MARANATHA, COME LORD JESUS!

And from the fig tree learn a parable:
When the branch thereof is now tender,
and the leaves come forth,
you know that summer is nigh.
So you also,
when you shall see all these things,
know ye that it is nigh, even at the doors.
Amen I say to you, that this generation
shall not pass, till all these things be done.



Heaven and earth shall pass, but my words shall not pass.

(MT. 24, 32-35)